Case 2:07-cr-00035-SRC  Document 8. Filed 01/12/2007 Page 1 of 21

MP/RK:200601267

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT QF NEW JERSEY

¥
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : Hon. SRC
¢ c=
V. : Criminal No. C}i%"“EZl;)
ALLEN HILLY : Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 1343 and 2
Title 28, United States Code,
Section 2461 (c)

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,
sitting at Newark, charges:

COUNTS 1 THROUGH 84
(Wire Fraud: AEG Client-Company Funds)

The Defendant and Other Entities

1. At all times relevant to this Indictment:

a. Defendant ALLEN HILLY [“HILLY”] was a residenf
of West Windsor, New Jersey and had businegs office locations in
Princeton and Bedminster, New Jersey.

b. Defendant HILLY was the Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of Professional Employer’s Holding
LLC [“PEH LLC”], which owned and operated various subsidiaries
including but not limited to Administrative Employers Group
[*AEG”], Employers Consortium Inc. [“ECI”], and Personnel
Management Solutionsg Inc. [“PMSI”].

¢. Defendant HILLY operated and controlled AEG,

ECI, and PMSI as professional employer organizations ["HILLY
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PEOs” or “his PEOs”], which were responsgible for management of
human resources, payroll, payroll tax compliance, and employee
benefits, including health benefits and workers’ compensation
insurance, for their client companies. Defendant HILLY did not
‘have signatory authority on his PEOs’ bank accounts.

d. Defendant HILLY was the Chairman of the Board),
Chief Executive Officer, and sole owner of Leading Edge Group
Holdings Corporation [“Leading Edge”]. Defendant Hilly had scle
signatory authority on Leading Edge bank accounts.

2. Among other things, defendant HILLY's PEOs were
responsible for and entrusted with administering payroll and
employment taxes on behalf of their client-companies and
reporting, collecting, and depositing those taxes with state and||
federal authorities.

3. Employers and PEOs, on behalf of their client-
companies, were required by law to report the withholding of
taxes from employees’ pay, including federal income tax, Social
Security, Medicare, and other taxes, as well as the employer
contributions relating to Social Security, Medicare, and other
taxes [collectively, the “Federal Employment Taxes”]. With
respect to these Federal Employment Taxes, employers and PEOs
were required pursuant to Title 26, United States Code, Sections

3504 & 3505, to file Employers Quarterly Federal Tax Returns

[“Form 941”] reporting these withholdings from their employees
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and to timely deposit the corresponding taxes in full to an
authorized bank or financial institution pursuant to Federal Tax
Deposit Reguirements.

4. Defendant HILLY's PEOs entered into contracts with
their client-companies which set forth the obligations of each
party. These contracts were variously entitled, among others,
“Service Agreements,” “Professional Employer Service Agreements,
and “Employee Lease Agreements.” The language of the contracts
varied, but each such contract obligated defendant HILLY's PEOs
to collect and pay the required Federal Employment Taxes and to
prepare and timely file all required federal tax returns.

5. For example, an AEG contract with its client-
companies, which was entitled “Service Agreement,” provided in
pertinent part:

1.3 Payroll Taxes: AEG shall collect and pay

all payroll taxes including income tax,

social security tax and other payroll taxes

as may be required under State and Federal

laws to be withheld from the compensation

paid to employees or paid directly by an

employer. As to such payroll taxes, AEG

shall prepare and timely file with the proper

governmental agencies or authorities all

required returns and reports.

6. In addition, an ECI contract with its client-
companies, which was entitled “Professional Employer Service
Agreement,” provided in pertinent part:

Upon receiving payment, ECI will

administer and/or provide the following
professional employer services as Client’s
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co-employer, payroll processing services;

human resource compliance assistance;

administering required federal, state and

local employee payments or withholdings from

wages, as well as required employer payroll

tax returns and remittances of employment

taxes to federal, state and local taxing

authorities

7. Pursuant to the contracts, the client-companies
made periodic payments to defendant HILLY's PEOs which consisted)
ameng other things, of withholdings from employees’ wages for the
employees’ portion of Social Security, federal income tax, and
other taxes, as well as payments for workers’ compensation
insurance premiums. Defendant HILLY's PEOs were paid

administrative fees in exchange for the promised services.

The Scheme and Artifice

8. From in or about February 2006 through at least on
or about December 13, 2006, in the District of New Jersey and
elsewhere, defendant

ALLEN HILLY
did knowingly and willfully devise and intend to devise a scheme
and artifice to defraud and to obtain money and property by meang
of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations ang
promises, which scheme and artifice is set forth below.

The Object of the Scheme

9. The object of the scheme and artifice was for

defendant HILLY, through fraud and by virtue of his dominion and
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control over his PEQs, to convert to his own use monies obtained
by AEG, ECI, and PMSI from their c¢lient-companies.
Meang and Methods

10. It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud
that defendant HILLY represented and caused to be represented,
both verbally and in writing, to the client-companies of HILLY's
PEOs that the PEOs would collect and pay all Federal Employment
Taxes and prepare and timely file all reguired federal tax
returns on behalf of the client-companies.

11. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to
defraud that beginning in or about February 2006 and continuing
through at least on or about December 13, 2006, defendant HILLY
directed and instructed his PEOs not to file the Forms 941 with
the Internal Revenue Service on behalf of the client-companies,
as required under the contracts between the PEOs and their
client-companies.

12. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to
defraud that beginning in or about February 2006, and continuing
through at least on or about December 13, 2006, defendant HILLY
directed and instructed his PEQs not to transfer to the Internal
Revenue Service the portion of his PEOs’ client-companies’ monief

that represented Federal Employment Taxes due to the Internal

Revenue Service.
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13. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to
defraud that at various times beginning in or about February
2006, and continuing through on or about December 13, 2006,
defendant HILLY directed and instructed AEG, ECI, and PMSI to
divert, via wire transfers, the client-companies’ Federal
Employment Taxes which were required to be remitted to the
Internal Revenue Service to a bank account at Bank of America
held in the name of Leading Edge Group Holdings Corporation (the
“Bank of America Account”), on-which account defendant HILLY was
the sole signatory.

14. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to
defraud that, during the period from in or about February 2006

through on or about November 15, 2006, defendant HILLY further

P

diverted the client-companies’ monies by causing approximately 2
wire transfers totaling approximately $10,790,000 to be sent froj
the Bank of America Account to investment accounts at UBS

Financial Services, Inc. [the “UBS Investment Accounts”] held in

the name of Leading Edge. Defendant HILLY was the sole signatory

on the UBS Investment Accounts.

15. It was further part of the scheme and artifice to

“defraud that defendant HILLY actively concealed material facts by

causing the PEOs to file the required Forms 941 and remit tax

payments for client-companies that complained that his PEOs had

failed to do so.

i
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16. On or about the dates set forth below, for the
purpose of executing the above scheme and artifice, in the
District of New Jersey and elsewhere, defendant

ALLEN HILLY

did knowingly and willfully transmit and cause to be transmitted
by means of wire in interstate commerce, writings, signs,
signals, and sounds, that is, the transmission of wire transfers
from an AEG account located in Illinois to the Bank of America

Account held in the name of Leading Edge and located in New York|

as set forth below:

COUNT DATE AMOUNT FROM TO

1 3/3/06 5163,754.54 AEG Bank of America
2 3/3/06 $163,754.54 AEG Bank of America
3 3/7/06 830,806.75 AEG Bank of America
4 3/7/06 530,806.75 AEG Bank of America
5 3/10/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
6 3/10/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of Americal
7 3/14/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of Americall
8 3/14/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
9 3/21/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
10 3/21/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
11 3/29/06 £28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
12 3/29/06 £28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
13 3/30/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
14 3/30/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
15 4/4/06 828,463.48 AEG Bank of America
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16 4/6/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
17 4/11/06 528,463.48 AEG Bank of America
18 4/13/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
19 4/18/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
20 4/20/06 $154,271.92 ABG Bank of America
21 4/25/06 $28,463 .48 AEG Bank of America
22 4/27/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
23 5/2/06 $28,463.48 ARG Bank of America
24 5/4/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
25 5/9/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of America
26 5/11/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
27 5/16/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of Americal
28 5/18/06 5154,271.92 ARG Bank of America
29 5/23/06 528,463.48 AEG Bank of America
30 5/25/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of Americal
31 6/1/06 $§154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
32 6/1/06 $34,701.65 AEG Bank of America
33 6/6/06 $35,531.87 AEG Bank of Americal
34 £/8/06 $154,271.92 AEG Bank of America
35 6/14/06 528,463.48 AEG Bank of Americg
36 6/15/06 $164,330.44 AEG Bank of Americad
37 6/20/06 $28,463.48 AEG Bank of Americg
38 6/22/06 5153,886.12 AEG Bank of Americs
39 6/27/06 $37,082.16 AEG Bank of America
40 6/27/06 $35,559.33 AEG Bank of America
41 7/5/06 837,666.77 AEG Bank of Americd
42 7/6/06 3139, 969.97 AEG Bank of America
43 7/11/06 $35,950.15 AEG Bank of Americd
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44 7/12/06 5164,489.15 AEG Bank of America
45 7/18/06 $129,901.53 AEG Bank of America
46 7/18/06 $31,838.14 AEG Bank of America
47 7/25/06 $158,004.18 AEG Bank of America
48 7/25/06 534,238.69 AEG Bank of America
49 7/31/06 $128,034.46 AEG Bank of Awmerica
50 8/1/06 $28,968.85 AEG Bank of America
51 8/7/06 $147,526.14 AEG Bank of America
52 8/8/06 $26,809.41 AEG Bank of America
53 8/14/06 $130,837.16 AEG Bank of America
54 8/15/06 $29,408.46 AEG Bank of America
55 8/21/06 $150,070.33 AEG Bank of America
56 8/22/06 527,588.77 AEG Bank of America
57 8/28/06 $126,017.69 AEG Bank of America
58 8/29/06 $28,545.99 AEG Bank of America
59 5/5/06 $156,072.67 AEG Bank of America
60 9/5/06 $31,513.02 AEBEG Bank of America
61 9/11/06 $101,1;9.28 ABEG Bank of America
62 9/12/06 $25,270.28 ARG Bank of America
63 9/18/06 $140,264.77 | AEG Bank of America
64 9/18/06 $25,720.50 AEBG Bank of America
65 9/25/06 $102,269.96 AEG Bank of America
66 10/2/06 $143,299,26 AEG Bank of America
67 10/3/06 $55,218.86 AEG Bank of America
68 10/10/06 $105,629.17 AEG Bank of America
69 10/10/06 $25,977.74 AEG Bank of America
70 10/16/06 $135,784.43 AEG Bank of America
71 10/17/06 $28,672.51 AEG Bank of America
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72 10/23/06 $97,300.78 AEG Bank of Americall
73 10/24/06 $21,866.12 ARG Bank of Americal!
74 10/30/06 $129,701.98 AEG Bank of America
75 10/31/06 $25,108.71 AEG Bank of America
76 11/6/06 $101,525.75 ARG Bank of America
77 11/7/08 $20,051.73 AEG Bank of America
78 11/13/06 $130,772.08 AEG Bank of Americalj
79 _ 11/13/06 $35,450.00 AEG Bank of America
30 11/14/06 $22,176.45 AEG Bank ©of America
81 11/20/06 $120,397.67 AEG Bank of America
82 11/21/06 $19,180.48 AEG Bank of America
83 11/27/06 $121,738.80 AEG Bank of America
84 11/28/06 $21,084.05 AEG Bank of America

TOTAL £6,964,469.60 AEG Bank of America

All in wviolatieon of Title 18, United States Code,

Sectiong 1343 and 2.
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COUNTS 85 THROUGH 173
(Wire Fraud: ECI Client-Company Funds)

1. The allegationg set forth in paragraphs 1 through
15 of Counts 1 through 84 of this Indictment are realleged and
incorporated herein as 1f set forth at length.

2. On or about the dates set forth below, for the
purpose of executing the scheme and artifice described in the
incorporated paragraphs of‘Counts 1 through 84,, in the District||
of New Jergsey and elsewhere, defendant

ALLEN HILLY
did knowingly and willfully transmit and cause to be transmitted
signs,

by means of wire in interstate commerce, writings,

signals, and sounds, that is, the transmission of wire transfers
from an ECI account located in Illinois to the Bank of America
Account held in the name of Leading Edge and located in New Yorkj

as set forth below:

COUNT DATE AMOUNT " FROM TO

85 2/24/06 $300,000.00 ECI Bank of America
86 3/3/06 $250,000.00 ECI Bank of America
87 3/3/06 $250,000.00 ECI Bank of America
88 3/7/06 $15,285.50 ECI Bank of America!1
89 - 3/7/06 $15,285.50 ECI Bank of America
90 3/14/06 $12,012.,78 ECI Bank of America
91 3/14/06 $12,012.78 ECI Bank of America
92 3/17/06 $200,000.00 ECI Bank of Americy
93 3/17/06 5200,000.00 ECI Bank of America

- 11 -
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94 3/28/06 $23,241.26 ECI Bank of America
a5 3/28/06 523,241.26 ECI Bank of America
96 3/31/06 $150,000.00 ECI Bank of America
97 3/31/06 $150,000.00 ECI Bank of America
98 4/4/06 $11,377.16 ECI Bank of America
99 4/7/06 580,295.96 ECI Bank of America
100 4/11/06 $131,946.70 ECI Bank of America
101 4/13/06 $135,440.92 ECI Bank of America
102 4/18/06 $13,496.04 ECI Bank of America
103 4/21/06 $82,833.55 ECI Bank of America
104 4/25/06 $14,302.70 ECI Bank of America
105 4/28/06 £124,395.65 ECI Bank of America
106 5/2/06 $18,219.60 ECI Bank of America
107 5/5/06 $130,510.16 ECI Bank of America
108 5/9/06 $17,732.20 ECI Bank of America
108 5/10/06 857,748.91 ECT Bank of America
110 5/12/06 $90,362.11 ECI Bank of America
111 5/17/06 §13,453.78 ECI Bank of America
112 5/22/06 $111,349.94 ECI Bank of America
113 5/23/06 518, 045.81 ECI Bank of America
114 5/26/06 $88,323.20 ECI Bank of America
115 6/2/06 $198,554.88 ECI Bank of America
116 6/6/06 £21,948.79 ECI Bank of America
117 6/12/06 5133,822.01 ECI Bank of America
118 6/13/06 $32,111.18 ECI Bank of America
119 6/16/06 $225,033.02 ECI Bank of Americal
120 6/21/06 $23,187.75 ECI Bank of America
121 6/23/06 $300,000.00 ECI Bank of America
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122 6/27/06 $17,630.29 ECI Bank of America
123 6/30/06 5164,690.55 ECI Bank of America
124 7/5/06 $19,621.24 ECI Bank of America
125 7/7/06 $73,745.51 ECI Bank of America
126 7/11/06 $17,697.20 ECI Bank of America
127 7/13/06 $91,700.78 ECI Bank of America
128 7/17/06 $147,827.85 ECI Bank of America
129 7/18/06 $17,098.27 ECI Bank of America
130 7/25/06 $169,741.11 ECI Bank cof America
131 7/25/06 $67,943.93 ECI Bank of America
132 7/25/06 $4,573.70 ECI Bank of America
133 7/31/06 £133,064.57 ECI Bank of America
134 8/1/06 $10,617.30 ECI Bank of America
135 8/7/06 $125,380.63 ECI Bank of America
136 8/8/06 $54,504.89 ECI Bank of America
137 8/8/06 526,227.61 ECI Bank of America
138 8/14/06 587,309.65 ECI Bank of America
139 8/15/06 $7,862.08 ECI Bank of America
140 8/18/06 $35,335.79 ECT Bank of America
141 8/21/06 $166,592.95 ECI Bank of America
142 8/22/06 $28,826.40 ECI Bank of America
143 8/28/06 5130,017.99 ECIT Bank of America
144 8/29/06 $23,680.49 ECI Bank of America
145 8/29/06 $9,865.74 ECI Bank of America
146 9/5/06 $§126,721.41 ECI Bank of America
147 9/5/06 $27,369.73 ECI Bank of America
148 9/12/06 $118,791.53 ECI Bank of Americal|
149 9/12/06 $11,512.72 ECI Bank of America
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150 9/18/06 $87,132.65 ECI Bank of Americyg
151 9/20/06 $7,868.47 ECI Bank of Americsy
152 9/25/06 S61,707.22 ECI Bank of America
153 9/27/06 $70,000.00 ECI Bank of Americs
154 9/29/06 $34,982.29 ECI Bank of America
155 10/2/06 $213,056.34 ECI Bank of America
156 10/3/06 $10,835.69 ECI Rank of Americay
157 10/10/06 $123,882.00 ECI Bank of Americs
158 10/10/06 $25,549.16 BECI Bank of Americyg
159 10/16/06 $102,268.46 ECI Bank of Americy
160 10/17/06 $7,818.83 ECI Bank of Americs
161 10/23/06 $152,609.93 ECI Bank of Americsg
162 10/24/06 $26,191.61 ECI Bank of Americd
163 10/26/06 5225,452.91 ECI Bank of Americg
164 10/30/06 $135,657.27 ECI Bank of Americs
165 10/30/06 58,143.77 ECI Bank of Americg
166 11/6/06 $127,333.08 ECT Bank of Americs
167 11/7/06 £31,768.02 ECIT Bank of Americd
168 11/13/06 $132,493.69 ECI Bank of Americsg
169 11/14/06 $6,063.38 ECI Bank of Americs
170 11/20/2006 $94,527.91 ECI Bank of America
171 11/21/2006 $31,680.09 ECI_ Bank of America
172 11/27/2006 585,970.49 ECI Bank of America
173 11/28/2006 §5,773.74 ECI Bank of America

TOTAL £7,400,290.04 ECI Bank of America
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 1343 and 2.
- 14
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